
                                                        
  

PPHHIILLAADDEELLPPHHIIAA  RREEDDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY  
  

11223344  MMAARRKKEETT  SSTTRREEEETT,,  1166TTHH  FFLLOOOORR  
  PPHHIILLAADDEELLPPHHIIAA,,  PPAA    1199110077    
  

BBOOAARRDD  MMEEEETTIINNGG  
WWEEDDNNEESSDDAAYY,,  MMAAYY  1133,,  22002200  

  
EExxeeccuuttiivvee  SSeessssiioonn  ––  33::3300  PP..MM..  

OOppeenn  SSeessssiioonn  ––  44::0000  PP..MM.. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES  
        

(a) Meeting of March 11, 2020  
 
I. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT      PAGE 

 
 

II. ADMINISTRATIVE        
 

(a) Philadelphia Zoo Penrose Building     (1) 
HVAC Replacement Project  
3400 Girard Avenue  
Burns Mechanical, Inc.  
Construction Contract  

 
(b) 400 North Broad Street including      (3) 

1501 Callowhill Street 
Corporate Facilities of New Jersey Inc.  
Professional Services Contract  
 

(c) Approval of Nonrecourse Loan to Philadelphia    (5) 
Accelerator Fund  
 

(d) Approval of Grant for Art Across Neighborhoods   (9) 
Initiative 

  
(e)       Small Landlord Loan Program     (11) 

Impact Loan Fund, Inc. 
Second Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan  

 
(f) Approval of Shallow Rent Pilot Program Recipients  (17) 

and Payments 
 



AGENDA 
Board Meeting of May 13, 2020 
Page -2- 

 
 
 

III. DEVELOPMENT  
 

(a) Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation   (21) 
1509 N. 17th Street  
Release of Certain Covenants and Restrictions    
 

(b) South Central Urban Renewal Area      (25) 
Neighborhood Garden Trust  
1220-30 Kenilworth Street  
Lease Agreement  
 

(c) New Kensington-Fishtown Urban Renewal Area   (31) 
BMK Properties, LLC  
2451-53 Frankford Avenue  
Selection of Redeveloper  

        
 



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 1 

PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority was held on 
Wednesday, March 11, 2020, commencing at 4:03 P.M., in the offices of the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority, being its regular meeting place, 16th floor, 1234 Market Street, 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, pursuant to proper notices. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Anne Fadullon, Chair; James 
Cuorato, Vice Chair; Rob Dubow, Treasurer; Maria Duque-Buckley, 2nd Vice Chair and 
Assistant Secretary (via phone); and Duane Bumb, Secretary.  
 
The following members of staff were present: Gregory Heller, Angel Rodriguez, Ryan D. 
Harmon, Esquire, Robert LaBrum, Karanja Slaughter, Roneece Dent, Wendolyn David, Alberta 
Burton-Benn, and Elizabeth Bonaccorso. 
 
Also in attendance: Jamila Davis, DHCD; Jihad Ali, The Enterprise Center; Mark Richardson, 
The Enterprise Center; Victor Szwanki, EAS Carpenters Local 158; and Claudia Vargas, 
Philadelphia Inquirer.   
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
None.  
 

 
 
MINUTES 
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting of February 12, 
2020. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes of February 12, 2020 were approved. 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT  
 
Mr. Heller informed the Board that in FY2020, the Authority has 40 affordable housing projects 
financed by PRA/PHDC in construction or predevelopment, representing 2,329 units, 403 of 

1



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 2 

which are accessible, and 159 of which are reserved for the Office of Homeless Services 
Clearinghouse. The total development cost of these projects is approximately Five Hundred 
Sixty Million Dollars ($561,000,000). 

Next, Mr. Heller stated that the Authority is holding an event to celebrate the one (1) year 
anniversary of Restore, Repair, Renew: Philadelphia's Home Repair Loan Program ("RRR"), on 
March 30th at the home of a resident who used an RRR loan to repair her home. More 
information on that event to follow on PHDC's website. As of now ninety (90) loans have been 
closed and the average borrower has an income of approximately 61% AMI and an average 
credit score of 711. Staff will be issuing a one (1) year report shortly that will have statistics on 
the RRR loans and borrower performance. 

Next, Mr. Heller stated the Authority has several Requests for Proposals ("RFP") posted, the first 
of which is seeking prime contractors for a renovation of Miles Mack Playground (736 N 36th 
Street), with responses due by March 16, 2020.  This project is part of the City's Rebuilding 
Community Infrastructure Program ("Rebuild"). 

Next, Mr. Heller stated the Authority is seeking a qualified consultant, such as an engineering, 
construction management or architectural firm to complete a Physical Conditions and Needs 
Assessment ("PCNA") for a portfolio of residential properties in the Germantown section of 
Philadelphia that are in the process of being transferred to Authority. Responses are due by 
March 30, 2020.  Mr. Heller stated that the Authority issued an open letter to the community on 
February 21, 2020, explaining the process moving forward, approximate timeline, and 
committing to working closely with our community partners. This letter is available on PHDC's 
website. 

Finally, Mr. Heller stated that the Authority is seeking redevelopers for a vacant parcel of land at 
84th and Lindbergh Boulevard owned by the Authority, and for a vacant school building at 2900 
S. 81st Street, offered as agent for the School District of Philadelphia. Proposed uses must be in 
alignment with the Lower Eastwick Land Strategy. Responses to both of those RFPs are due by 
April 7, 2020.  

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE  
 
Mr. Slaughter presented "Item II (a) – Approval of Property Transfer of Eight (8) PRA 
Properties to the City of Philadelphia" in substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet 
hereto.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

2



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF TITLE FROM TO CERTAIN 
PROPERTIES FROM THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO 
THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA TO BE OPERATED AS A PARK AND GREENSPACE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority") owns the 
parcels located at 914-928 S 17th Street (collectively, the "Property"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Philadelphia, acting through its Department of Public Property 
(the "City"), and the Authority previously determined that the best use for the Property would be 
as a park and greenspace which would ultimately be owned by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property was to be developed while in the Authority's ownership and, 
when construction was completed, the Property would be transferred to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, South of South Neighborhood Association ("SOSNA") undertook 
construction at the Property and, following transfer of the developed Property to the City, 
SOSNA will enter into an agreement with the City to allow SOSNA to maintain and operate the 
park on behalf of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority previously entered into two (2) License Agreements in order 
to provide the SOSNA general contractors permission to complete construction at the Property, 
which is now complete; and 
  
 WHEREAS, City Council Bill No. 190744 was passed by City Council on December 5, 
2019, authorizing the transfer of the Property from the Authority to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the transfer of the Property to the City will promote the public purposes and 
provide public benefit; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority that the Authority is authorized to transfer title of 914-928 S. 17th Street to the City of 
Philadelphia, acting through its Department of Public Property, without consideration, and for 
the preparation, execution, acknowledgement and delivery of a deed to the City of Philadelphia, 
acting through its Department of Public Property. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel.  
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution and Construction Contract necessary or 
desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  
 
 

3



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 4 

Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Duque-Buckley, Mr. Bumb 
and Mr. Dubow. 
 

 
 
Mr. Rodriguez presented "Item II (b) – Conveyance of City Properties to Philadelphia Land 
Bank" in substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Additional Comments and Discussion  
 
Ms. Fadullon recognized Mr. Ali and invited him to speak.  Mr. Ali asked what the end use would 
be for these identified parcels.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that at this time, the use is undetermined.  
Mr. Ali asked if any interested parties may seek/apply to acquire these properties once in Land 
Bank's inventory.  Mr. Rodriguez replied yes.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-19  
 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK – RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE 
OF TITLE FROM THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA TO VARIOUS PROPERTIES AND 
CONVEYANCE OF SUCH PROPERTIES BY THE PHILADELPHIA 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank Act") 
authorized the City of Philadelphia ("City") to create a land bank in accordance with the Land 
Bank Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), authorized 

the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, powers and duties; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-705 of The Philadelphia Code authorizes the City's 

Commissioner of Public Property to convey real property to the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, without consideration, for subsequent transfer to the Philadelphia Land Bank; and 

 
WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution have been 

deemed surplus property by the City and the transfer of such properties to the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority for subsequent transfer to the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote 
the public purposes for which the City created the Land Bank; and 

 

4



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 5 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 190947, adopted on December 5, 
2019, the City has authorized transfer of the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this 
Resolution to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority for subsequent transfer to the 
Philadelphia Land Bank; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to 
accept title from the City of Philadelphia to those properties identified on Exhibit "A," hereto, 
and for the conveyance and preparation, execution, acknowledgment and delivery of deeds to the 
Philadelphia Land Bank, without consideration, pursuant to Chapter 16-700 of The Philadelphia 
Code. 

 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents. 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

Properties Owned by the City of Philadelphia to be Conveyed to the Philadelphia Land 
Bank through the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 

 
 
3rd Counci lmanic District  Properties  
 
3710 Haverford Avenue 
1223 N.  42nd Street  
4122 Leidy Avenue 
4124 Leidy Avenue 
4128 Leidy Avenue 
4134 Leidy Avenue 
4140 Leidy Avenue 
4148 Leidy Avenue 
4164 Leidy Avenue 
4112 W. St i les  Street  
4114 W. St i les  Street  
4116 W. St i les  Street  
4120 W. St i les  Street  
4122 W. St i les  Street  
4124 W. St i les  Street  
4126 W. St i les  Street  
4128 W. St i les  Street  
5334 Market  Street  

5



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 6 

5336 Market  Street  
5338 Market  Street  
5340 Market  Street  
5342 Market  Street  
5344 Market  Street  
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Duque-Buckley, Mr. Bumb 
and Mr. Dubow. 
 

 
 
Mr. Harmon presented "Item II (c) – Release of Redevelopment Agreement for 2700 Sears 
Street" in substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Additional Comments and Discussion  
 
Ms. Fadullon recognized Mr. Ali and invited him to speak.  Mr. Ali inquired as to the total number 
of properties that would be involved in the subsequent Land Bank transfer. Mr. Rodriguez replied 
nineteen (19).  Mr. Rodriguez further stated that an EOP is in place, as well as the typical Land 
Bank Purchase and Development Agreement.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that this action was approved 
by the Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors in December, 2019.   
 
Mr. Harmon reiterated to Mr. Ali that the Authority Board is not considering or approving the 
details of the Land Bank transfer and that those details were considered by the Land Bank Board of 
Directors.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-20  
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF A REDEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT FOR 2700 SEARS STREET 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that solely with respect 
to 2700 Sears Street, the Redevelopment Agreement between the Authority and Philadelphia 
Housing Development Corporation dated July 16, 1997, may be released from the property; further 
authorizing the execution, delivery and recording of a Release for the property and the preparation 
of all other documentation necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing.  
 

6



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 7 

 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes 
and intents.  
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Duque-Buckley, Mr. Bumb 
and Mr. Dubow. 
 

 
 
Ms. Fadullon pointed out that the following Board items:  "Item III (a) - Section of Redeveloper, 
JDT International Inc." and "Item III (b) - Assignment of Development Rights with regards 
to 4300-12 & 4314-26 Ridge Avenue" were withdrawn by staff for consideration at today's Board 
meeting.  
 

 
 
REAL ESTATE 
 
Ms. Dent presented "Item IV – Conveyance of Property, 2517 N. 9th Street" in substance 
consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21 
 
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA – DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC PROPERTY - RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF TITLE FROM THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA TO 
VARIOUS PROPERTIES AND DISPOSITION OF SUCH PROPERTIES 
 
 

WHEREAS, certain properties have been acquired by the City of Philadelphia (the "City") 
and determined to be surplus to the needs of the City; 

 
WHEREAS, the Vacant Property Review Committee ("VPRC") has recommended to the 

City Commissioner of Public Property that the surplus property listed below be made available for 
disposition in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-400 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commissioner of Public Property has also recommended to City 

Council the below dispositions; 
 

7



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 8 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank ("PLB") has reviewed the proposed dispositions, 
have agreed with the recommendations of VPRC and the City Commissioner of Public Property; 

 
WHEREAS, the PLB, on as agent for the City, will prepare a Purchase and Development 

Agreement ("PDA") against each of the below properties to be recorded prior to any conveyance, 
with the exception of interagency transfers; 

 
WHEREAS, the properties identified below will be conveyed for nominal consideration. 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Authority to accept title from the City of 
Philadelphia for properties listed below and for the preparation, execution, acknowledgment and 
delivery of a deed to the Grantee(s) herein listed conveying the respective properties for a 
consideration of $1.00: 
 

 Address      Grantee  
 

2517 N. 9th Street Carl Childs 
     

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 

Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents.  
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Duque-Buckley, Mr. Bumb 
and Mr. Dubow. 
 

 
 
ADD ON ITEM  
 
Mr. LaBrum presented "Item V – Construction Contract with Seravalli, Inc." in substance 
consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Additional Comments and Discussion  
 
Ms. Fadullon recognized Mr. Ali and invited him to speak.  Mr. Ali raised concerns with regards to 
the Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP") goals:  MBE 16% and WBE 38%.  Mr. Ali asked why the 
MBE ranges are so low.  Mr. LaBrum responded that the review team was aware of the percentages; 
however, this project is funded under the Rebuild Program.  Mr. LaBrum further stated that the 

8



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 9 

other bid received provided MBE goals of 3% and WBE goals of 0%.  Mr. Ali asked if Authority 
staff could pull previous EOP's to see if developers are meeting the required goals.   
 
Board Action  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-22  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION CONTRCAT WITH SERAVALLI, 
INC. FOR THE HANCOCK PLAYGROUND RENOVATION PROJECT AT 141 MASTER 
STREET 
 
 WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority") issued a Request 
for Proposals ("RFP") seeking responses from qualified contractors willing and capable of 
performing the Hancock Playground Renovation project at 141 Master Street (the "Project"). 
  
 WHEREAS, Seravalli, Inc. ("Seravalli") submitted its response to the RFP, outlining their 
extensive experience.  
 
 WHERAS, Seravalli's proposal was selected by the Project review team.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, the authorization is hereby given to the Authority's Executive Director to enter into a 
Construction Contract with Seravalli for the Project, with a maximum compensation not to exceed 
One Million Four Hundred Sixty-Four Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($1,464,100.00) (total Base 
Bid plus 10% Contingency). 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all documentation 
necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and 
General Counsel.  
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution and Construction Services Contract necessary 
or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  

 
 

Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Duque-Buckley, Mr. Bumb 
and Mr. Dubow. 
 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Fadullon inquired if there was any old business for the Board.  Ms. Fadullon recognized Mr. 
Ali and invited him to speak.  Mr. Ali stated that there is not enough transparency from the 

9



                                                      Board Meeting of March 11, 2020  
                                               Volume 65– Page 10 

Authority in providing the public with entire Board packages to review prior to Board meetings.  
Mr. Ali thanked the Board for listening to his concerns.  Ms. Fadullon thanked Mr. Ali for 
providing his feedback to the Board.  
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Fadullon inquired if there was any new business for the Board.  No new business was 
presented to the Board.  
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Fadullon declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:22 P.M. 
 
 
 

    ___________________________ 
       SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

10



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Approval of Property Transfer Request  
Carpenter Green Park (914-928 S. 17th Street) 

PURPOSE  

Approval is requested for the transfer of eight (8) Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA") 

properties to the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Property ("the City"). 

REDEVELOPER:  South of South Neighborhood Association ("SOSNA") 

CONTRACTOR/LICENSEE: Seravalli Inc. and Reed Street Builders ("RSB") 

PROPERTIES:  914-928 S. 17th Street (the "Property") 

DEVELOPMENT COSTS:  $155,000 ("Phase I") and $200,000 ("Phase II") 

FUNDING: 

Funding Source Amount 

Phase I NTI $110,000 

Phase I Private Contributions $45,000 

Phase II NTI Recycled Funds $25,000 

Phase II PA DCED $50,000 

Phase II Private Contributions $125,000 

DISPOSTION PRICE: N/A 

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY: This project did not require an Economic Opportunity Plan.  Nonetheless, 
it attained participation of 27% MBE/0% WBE. The MBE participation was due to a $94,235 subcontract 
with Benchmark Construction. 

PREVAILING WAGE: All of Phase I was Prevailing Wage and a portion of Phase II was Prevailing 
Wage as dictated by the public funding. 

NATURE OF TRANSACTION: The approval of the transfer of eight (8) properties from PRA to the City.  
SOSNA has completed the second phase of construction of a new 6,340 square-foot neighborhood park 
at the Property. PRA entered into two (2) License Agreements, one for each phase, in order to provide 
SOSNA's general contractors permission to complete construction at the Property. The License 
Agreements were executed on July 13, 2017 and January 29, 2019, respectively, as amended. 
Construction at the Property is now complete. 

Item II (a)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 1111



The Property is currently owned by PRA. Following the transfer of the Property to the City, SOSNA will 
enter into an agreement with the City to allow them to maintain and operate the park on behalf of the 
City. Bill 190744 was passed by Philadelphia City Council on December 5, 2019, authorizing the transfer of 
the Property from PRA to the City. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Phase I 

· SOSNA and Seravalli signed a contract for the survey and improvement of approximately 6,340 SF
Carpenter Green Park in July 2015.

· PRA executed a Grant Agreement with SOSNA for $110,000 utilizing NTI funds in September 2015.
· PRA and SOSNA entered into a License Agreement for SOSNA to carry out Phase I work in July

2017.
· Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP") was not required because the construction took place while

PRA was the owner and at the time the threshold for requiring an EOP was $250,000.
· The project is subject to PA Prevailing Wage.
· General Contractor, Seravalli Inc., completed Phase I of the project, which was primarily the

below grade portion of the work in 2017:
o Survey and layout
o Demolition
o Tree pits
o Excavation and grading
o Rain garden stone pit installation
o Water service
o Curb and exterior perimeter sidewalk installation
o Electrical conduit
o Stone base for walkways

Phase II 

· $24,999 NTI Recycled Funds were transferred from PRA to SOSNA in September 2017.
· PPR approved SOSNA scope, drawings and materials for Phase II of the project in October

2018.
· PRA and RSB entered into a License Agreement for the construction of a green space or park

in January 2019.
· EOP was not required because the construction took place while PRA was the owner. However

$94,235 of the project was subcontracted to Benchmark Construction, an MBE firm listed in
Philadelphia's OEO Registry.

· City Council Bill 190112 approved transfer of 928 S 17th Street from the City to PRA in February 
2019—completing the land assemblage.

· RSB completed the following scope of work from June 2019- February 2020:
o Lower mounded areas and remove excess material
o Topsoil and seed
o Concrete walkways, concrete pad and concrete footings/pads for pergola, light poles,

benches, and trash cans
o Pole-mounted lighting fixtures with new electrical hook up (at shed location)
o Prefabricated pergolas
o Segmental block seating wall

Item II (a)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 12 

12



o Benches, trash/recycling cans and steel storage shed
o All landscape materials (trees, plantings, and grass seed, as per plans & specifications)
o Replace existing sidewalks at park perimeter

· City Council Resolution 190744 authorized transfer of all eight parcels, 914-928 S. 17th Street,
from PRA to the City in December 2019.

Proposed Resolution attached.  

Prepared By: Karanja Slaughter, Special Projects Coordinator 

Item II (a)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 13 13



BOA RD  F A CTSH EE T   
M eeti ng  of  Mar ch  11,  2020  
Conv eya nc e  of  C i ty  Proper ti es  t o  Phi l a del phia  La nd  Ba nk  

Nature  o f  Tr ans ac t ion : T he P hi la del phi a  R edev el opment A ut hor i t y (t he " PR A" ) wi l l  
faci l i tat e  the  c onveya nc e  of  t i t l e  of  proper ties  owned by  t he C i ty  of  P hi la delphi a  
(t he  "C i ty ")  P ubl i c  Pr opert y  t o  t he  Phi l a del phia  La nd Ba nk:   

· The c onv eya nc e  of  thes e  pr oper ti es  wi l l  be  for  t he  di spos i t ion ,  r eus e ,  a nd
ma nag ement by  t he  P hi la del phia  L and  Ba nk .

· The C i t y pr operti es  l i st ed bel ow  w er e a ppr ov ed  f or  c onv eya nc e  t o  t he
Phi l adel phia  L a nd  Ba nk  i n c ol la bora tion  wi t h t he  3r d  C ounci lmani c  Di str i ct
Off i c e.

● Pur s ua nt  t o  C i ty  C ounci l  R es ol uti on  No.  19 0947 ,  a dopt ed  on  Dec ember  5 ,  2 019 ,
the  C i ty  a ut hor iz ed  tra ns f er  of  t he  pr operti es  l i s t ed  bel ow  t o  the  P hi la del phia
Redev el opment  Aut hor i ty  for  s ubs equent  tr ansf er  t o  t he  P hi la del phia  La nd
Ba nk .

PROP ER TY  I NF OR MA TI ON :  

Ci ty  Convey anc e:   The C i ty  pr operti es  at tac hed  her et o  a s  E xhibi t  "A "  wi l l  be  
convey ed  t he  P hi la delphia  R edev el opment  Aut hor i t y  f or  the  s ubs equent  
conveya nc e  t o  t he P hi la del phia  La nd Ba nk , wi t hout  c onsi dera tion , purs uant t o  
Cha pter  16- 700  of  T he  P hi la del phi a  C ode.  

Item II (b)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 14

14



EX HIBI T  "A "  

3rd Counc il m ani c  Di s tr ic t  Prop er tie s  

3710  Ha ver f or d Av enue 
1223  N.  4 2 nd  Str eet  
4122  L ei dy  Av enue 
4124  L ei dy  Av enue 
4128  L ei dy  Av enue 
4134  L ei dy  Av enue 
4140  L ei dy  Av enue 
4148  L ei dy  Av enue 
4164  L ei dy  Av enue 
4112  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4114  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4116  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4120  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4122  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4124  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4126  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
4128  W.  S t i les  S tr eet  
5334  Mark et  S tr eet  
5336  Mark et  S tr eet  
5338  Mark et  S tr eet  
5340  Mark et  S tr eet  
5342  Mark et  S tr eet  
5344  Mark et  S tr eet  

Item II (b)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 15

15



BOA RD  F A CTSH EE T   
M eeti ng  of  Mar ch  11,  2020  
Rel eas e  of  R edev el opment  Agr eement   
2700  S ears  S tr eet ,  P hi la del phia ,  P enns ylva nia  

NAME O F DEV ELOP ER /AP P LICAN T:  P hi la de lph ia  Hou sing  D e velo pmen t  Corp orati on  
("R ed eve lop er" )  

NATU RE O F T RANSAC TIO N:   Th e Boar d i s  as ke d to a ut ho r ize  t he  rel eas e of  a  
Rede vel opme nt   Agre emen t ( the  "Agr eeme nt " ) b et we en t he A ut hor i ty  a nd th e  
Rede vel op er ,  da te d Ju ly  16,  1997,  so lel y  wi th  res pe ct to  2700 Se ars Str ee t,  P hi la de lph ia ,  
PA ( the  "Pr op erty " ).   

BACKGROU ND:   By R es olu ti on No.  15 ,441,  ad opt ed  o n May 19,  1997,  the  Boar d au th or iz ed  
the con veya nce of th e Prop er ty t o th e Re dev el op er  in or der  for  th e Red eve lo per  to c onv ey  
the  Pro per ty to  a  gran te e wh o w ou ld be  req uir ed to  re habi l i tat e the  Pro per ty.   Th e  
Proper ty was c onv eye d t o th e Re dev el oper  pur suan t to th e Agr eeme nt by a  de ed dat ed  
Octob er  30,  1997.  T he  su bs equ en t con veya nce  by  t he  Re dev el oper  t o a  grant ee  n ev er  
occurr ed.    

The  Re dev el oper  was  r equ ire d to  c onv ey th e Prop ert y back  t o th e A uth or i ty  wh en  i t  wa s  
unabl e to f in d a  bu yer  for  th e Prop er ty,  bu t t he R ed eve lo per  u ni n ten ti ona l ly  c onv eye d t he  
Proper ty to th e Ph i lad elp hia  La nd Ban k ( th e "La nd Ba nk" ) o n  Decem ber  29,  2015 for  
nomina l  co nsi dera ti on.   T he Land Ba nk i s  i n t he proc ess o f e nt e r ing  in to a  Purc hase a nd  
Deve lopm en t Agreem en t wi th a  d eve lo per ,  C iv et ta  Pro per ty Gro up LLC  ( "CPG") tha t wi l l  
requ ire CPG to dev el op th e Prop ert y,  a lo ng  wit h o th er  parc els ,  as  for -sa le s ing l e- famil y  
homes,  a f for dabl e to famil ies  earn ing  at  or  bel ow 80% of  Area Med ian In come.  
Rede vel op er  ha s re qu es ted  t he A ut hor i ty  to  re leas e th e Agre eme nt.   

Becaus e th e R ed eve lo per  is  a  non -pro fi t  h ou sing  cor pora tio n inc orpora te d by th e C i ty  o f  
Phi la del ph ia  who c onv ey ed t he Pr op erty for  n omina l  co nsi dera t ion to t he La nd Bank,  a  
publ ic  b ody a nd a  b ody c orp orat e and p ol it ic  s imi lar  t o t he A ut hor i ty,  wh o in tur n wi l l  
impos e a  d eve lo pmen t ob l igat ion  o n CPG w it h r esp ec t to  the  Pro per ty,  th e B oard  is  
requ es te d t o au th or i ze th e r elea se o f t he  Agreem en t.    

Prepare d by: Ryan Harmo n  

Item II (c)

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume - Page 16 

16



BO ARD  FAC TSHEET  
Meeting of Ma rch 11 ,  2020  
Ci ty of Phi la delphia  –  D epa rtment  of Pu bl ic  Property  

Nature  of  Tr ans ac tio n:   The Phi la delphia  Redevelopment  Author ity  ( "PRA")  
wi ll  fa cil it a t e  the  conveya nce of t i t l e  from the C ity  to  ident i f i ed  Gra ntees l i s t ed  
below.  

· The Va ca nt Property  Review Commit tee ("VPRC")  serves a s  an a dvi sory
commi ttee  a nd r ecommends to  the  Ci ty  of Phi la delphia  ( "C ity")
Commissioner  of Pu bl ic Proper ty wha t C ity  surplu s proper t i es  shou ld be
ma de a va il a ble  for d i sposi tion  in  a ccorda nce with  Cha pter 16 -400  of the
Ci ty Code.

· Propert i es  a nd G ra ntees l i s t ed  below were r ecommended by t he  VPRC to
the C ity  Commissioner  of Pu bl ic  Property  for d i sposi tion .

· The Ci ty  Commissioner  of Pu bl ic  Proper ty  ha s a l so  r ecommen ded to  Ci ty
Cou nci l  the  below di sposi t ions.

· Resolut ions au thor iz ing the  below di sposit ions by the PRA were
approved by Ci ty Cou ncil .

· Pursua nt  to  a  Memora ndu m of Under sta nding between the C ity  a nd the
Phi la delphia  La nd Ba nk  ( "PLB")  da ted  Apri l  8 , 2019 ,  the  PLB ha s
reviewed the proposed di sposi t ions, ha ve a greed  wi th the
recommenda t ions of VPRC a nd the C i ty  Commissioner  of Pu bl ic
Property .

· With the except ion  of intera gency tra nsfer s ,  t he  PLB,  on a s a gent  for  the
Ci ty,  wi ll  pr epa re a  Purcha se a nd D evelopment  Agreement ("PD A")
aga inst ea ch of the  below propert i es  to be r ecorded pr ior  to  a ny
conveya nce.

· The conveya nce of these  propert i es  to the  G ra ntees for  r eu se wi ll  r e l i eve
the Ci ty of the ca re , ma intena nce a nd ma na gement  of the  propert i es  a nd
help  ar r est  bl ight  in  the  neighborhoods a nd r estore  the  propert i es  to
produ ct ive u se .

Item IV

Board  Mee t ing  March  11 ,  2020  
Vo lume  65  -  Page  17  17



PRO PER TY  IN FO RM ATION :  

1) Nominal Dis po si tio n:  The fo l lowing proper t i es  wil l  be  conveyed a t
nomina l:

Addre ss  Gr antee  

2517 N. 9th Street Carl Childs 

Item IV

Board Meeting of March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 18 

18



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting  of March 11, 2020  
Approval  of  Construction Contract 
Seraval l i ,  Inc. 
Hancock Playground Renovation 

NATURE OF TRANSACTION:  

The approval  of a  Construction Contract between the Phi ladelphia  Redevelopment 
Author ity  (the “Author ity”) and Seraval l i ,  Inc.  (“Seraval l i” )  for  the Hancock Playground 
Renovation project,  located at 141 Master  Street.  This  project is  part of the C ity’s  
Rebui lding  Community Infrastructure Program (“Rebui ld”).  

SELECTION P ROCESS:  

On January 24,  2020,  The Author ity  advertised a  Request for  Proposals  (“RFP”) for  the 
project.  The Author ity  received two (2) proposals  from qual i f ied contractors.  Seraval l i ’ s  
proposal  was selected by the project review team. 

Seraval l i ,  Inc.  
10059 Sandmeyer  Lane 
Phi ladelphia ,  PA 19116 
Tota l  Base B id:  $1 ,331,000 
EOP: 16% MBE; 38% WBE 

BACKGROUND/FINANCING:  

The project wi l l  be funded with C ity  Capita l  funds as outl ined in the executed Subgrant 
Agreement between the Author ity,  C ity  of Phi ladelphia  and PAID.  The Agreement a l lows 
for  funds to be transferred to the Author ity  for  C ity  “Rebui ld”  projects.  

Proposed Resolution and supporting  project information are attached (s ite map and 
photographs).   

Prepared by: Robert LaBrum 
Reviewed by: Ryan Harmon 

Item V

Board Meeting March 11, 2020 
Volume 65 - Page 19 19



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020 
Approval  of  Construct ion  Contract  with  Burns  Mechanica l ,  Inc.  
Ph i ladelphia  Zoo Penrose Bui ld ing HVAC Project  

NAT URE OF T RANSACT I ON:  

The  appro v a l  o f  Co nstruct io n  Co ntract  between the  P hi lade lphia  Redev e lo pm ent  
Autho r i ty  ( the  "Autho r i ty" ) ,  as  agent  fo r  the  C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  ( the  "C i ty" ) ,  and Burns  
Mechanica l ,  Inc .  ( "Burns" )  fo r  the  P hi lade lphia  Zo o  P enro se  Bui ld ing  HVAC pro ject ,  
lo cated at  340 0  Gi rard  Av enue  ( the  "P ro ject" ) .  

The  P ro ject  inc ludes  the  rep lacem ent  o f  a  fo ur -sp l i t ,  a i r  co ndi t io n ing  system  fo r  the  
P hi lade lphia  Zo o 's  P enro se  Bui ld ing .  

SELECT I ON PROCESS:  

The  C i ty  so l i c i ted  qua l i f ied  co nst ruct io n  f i rm s  fo r  the  pro ject  and se lected Burns  as  the  
lo west  qua l i f ied  b idder .  

Burns  Mec hanic al ,  I nc .  
123  G ibra l tar  Ro ad 
Ho rsham ,  P A 1 90 47  
To ta l  Base  B id :  $1 53 ,2 50  
EOP:  10% MBE;  1 0% WBE

BACKGROUND/ FI NANCI NG:  

The  Pro ject  w i l l  be  funded with  C i ty  capi ta l  funds  as  o ut l ined in  the  executed Grant  
Agreem ent  ( "Agreem ent" )  between the  Autho r i ty  and the  C i ty .  The  Agreem ent  a l lo ws  
fo r  funds  to  be  t ransferred to  the  Autho r i ty  fo r  C i ty  pro jects .  

P ro po sed Reso lut io n  and suppo rt ing  pro ject  info rm at io n are  at tached.  

P repared by :  Ro bert  LaBrum  
Rev iewed by :  Ryan Harm o n 

Item II (a)

1



              

RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, AS AGENT FOR THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, TO ENTER INTO A 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH BURNS MECHANICAL, INC., FOR THE 
PHILADELPHIA ZOO PENROSE BUILDING HVAC PROJECT, LOCATED AT 3400 
GIRARD AVENUE 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Philadelphia ("City") solicited proposals seeking responses from 
qualified construction firms willing and capable of performing the Philadelphia Zoo Penrose 
Building HVAC replacement project (the "Project"). 
  
 WHEREAS, Burns Mechanical, Inc. ("Burns") submitted its response to the City, outlining 
its extensive experience.  Burns was the lowest qualified bidder. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, the authorization is hereby given to the Authority's Executive Director to enter into a 
Construction Contract, as agent for the City, with Burns for the Project, with a maximum 
compensation not to exceed One Hundred Sixty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-Five 
Dollars ($168,575) (total Base Bid plus 10% Contingency). 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all documentation 
necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and 
General Counsel.  
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution and Construction Services Contract necessary 
or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  

 
 
 

     
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II (a)

2



+ 

BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020  
Approval  of  Profess ional  Serv ice  Contract  with  Corporate  Faci l i t ies  of  
New Jersey,  Inc.  
400 North  Broad Street ,  Inc luding 1501 Cal lowhi l l  St reet  

NAT URE OF T RANSACT I ON:  

The  appro v a l  o f  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  Co ntract  between the  P hi lade lphia  Redev e lo pm ent  
Autho r i ty  ( the  "Autho r i ty" ) ,  as  agent  fo r  the  C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  ( the  "C i ty" ) ,  and 
Co rpo rate  Fac i l i t ies  o f  New Jersey ,  Inc .  ( "CF I" ) ,  fo r  the  pro curem ent  and insta l la t io n  o f  
furn i ture ,  f i x tures  and equipm ent  ( "FF&E")  fo r  400  No rth  Bro ad St reet ,  inc luding  15 01  
Ca l lo whi l l  S t reet  ( co l lect iv e ly  the  "P ro perty" ) ,  which  i s  current ly  be ing  dev e lo ped and 
wi l l  be  de l iv ered as  a  turnkey  pro ject  fo r  the  C i ty  P o l i ce  D epartm ent  and o ther  C i ty  
agenc ies  to  o ccupy .  

SELECT I ON PROCESS:  

The  Autho r i ty ,  as  agent  fo r  the  C i ty ,  current ly  ho lds  a  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  Co ntract  
( " IE I  Co ntract" )  w i th  IE I  Gro up,  L td .  ( " IE I" )  fo r ,  am o ng o ther  th ings ,  the  preparat io n  o f  
an  FF&E p lan  fo r  the  P ro perty .   The  IE I  Co ntract  was  ado pted by  the  Autho r i ty  Bo ard  o n 
Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  by  Reso lut io n  20 1 8-52 ,  and was  executed o n Septem ber  11 ,  2018 .  The  IE I  
Co ntract  inc ludes  the  se lect io n  by  IE I  o f  a  serv ice  pro v ider  to  pro cure  and insta l l  the  
FF&E ident i f ied  by  IE I .   

On Octo ber  2 3 ,  2 01 9,  IE I  adv ert i sed  a  Request  fo r  P r ic ing  ( "RFP ")  fo r  the  pro curem ent  
and insta l la t io n  o f  the  FF&E.  CF I  was  se lected by  IE I  and C i ty  as  the  lo west ,  qua l i f ied  
b idder .  

Corporate  Fac i l i t i es  of  New  Jersey ,  Inc .  
123  G ibra l tar  Ro ad 
Ho rsham ,  P A 1 90 47  
To ta l  Co ntract  Am o unt :  No t  to  Exceed $8 ,000 ,000  
EOP:  100% MBE 

BACKGROUND/FI NANCI NG:  

Al l  co sts  under  the  pro po sed P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  Co ntract  sha l l  be  pa id  by  the  C i ty  as  
pro v ided in  the  Co o perat io n  Agreem ent  dated Octo ber  16 ,  2017 ,  as  am ended ( the  
"Co o perat io n  Agreem ent" ) ,  between the  Autho r i ty  and the  C i ty .   

P ro po sed Reso lut io n  and suppo rt ing  pro ject  info rm at io n are  at tached.  

P repared by :  Ro bert  LaBrum  
Rev iewed by :  Ryan Harm o n 

Item II (b) 

3



              

RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, AS AGENT FOR THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH CORPORATE FACILITIES OF 
NEW JERSEY, INC., FOR THE PROCUREMENT AND INSTALLATION OF 
FURNITRE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT AT 400 NORTH BROAD STREET, 
INCLUDING 1501 CALLOWHILL STREET 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-52, adopted on July 11, 2018, the 
Authority Board approved a Contract for Professional Services ("Services Contract") between the 
Authority, as agent for the City of Philadelphia (the "City"), and IEI Group, Ltd. ("IEI"), to 
provide services related to the design, coordination, selection, specification, procurement and 
installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment ("FF&E") at 400 North Broad Street, including 
1501 Callowhill Street (collectively, the "Property"). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Services Contract was executed on September 11, 2018. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Services Contract, IEI solicited proposals seeking responses 
from qualified service providers willing and capable of performing the procurement and installation 
of FF&E at the Property (the "FF&E Services"). 
  
 WHEREAS, Corporate Facilities of New Jersey, Inc. ("CFI") submitted its response to 
IEI's solicitation, outlining its extensive experience.  
 
 WHEREAS, CFI was selected by IEI and the City as the lowest qualified bidder. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, the authorization is hereby given to the Authority's Executive Director to enter into a 
Contract for Professional Services, as agent for the City, with CFI for the FF&E Services, with a 
maximum compensation not to exceed Eight Million Dollars ($8,000,000). 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all documentation 
necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and 
General Counsel.  
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution and Contract for Professional Services 
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  

Item II (b) 

4



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020 
Approval  of  Nonrecourse  Loan to  Phi ladelphia  Accelerator  Fund 

NAME OF BORROWER/ APPLI CANT :  Phi lade lphia  Acce lerato r  Fund,  a  P ennsy lv ania  
do m est ic  no npro f i t  co rpo rat io n  ( "Acce lerato r" )  

Nature  of  T ransac t ion:   The  Bo ard  i s  requested to  autho r ize  a  lo an in  the  am o unt  
o f  E ight  Mi l l io n  D o l lars  ($ 8 ,0 00 ,000)  ( the  "Autho r i ty  Lo an")  to  Acce lerato r  fo r  the  
purpo se  o f  lev erag ing  pr iv ate  capi ta l  that  wi l l  be  used to  inv est  in  pro duc ing  
and/ o r  preserv ing  a f fo rdable  ho us ing  pro jects  in  the  C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  ( the  
"C i ty" ) .  Spec i f i ca l ly ,  the  pro ceeds  o f  the  Autho r i ty  Lo an wi l l  be  used fo r  the  
purpo ses  o f  estab l i sh ing  a  lo an- lo ss  reserv e ,  pro v id ing  guarantees ,  and/ o r  to  
sat i s fy  l iqu id i ty  co v enants .  

Autho r i ty  Lo an funds  wi l l  no t  be  used fo r  wo rk ing  capi ta l  uses  as  such uses  m ay  
no t  be  suppo rted by  o ur  purpo se  under  the  Urban Redev e lo pm ent  Law,  35  P .S .  §  
1701 ,  e t .  seq.  ( the  "URL") .  

Bac kground :  The  need fo r  Acce lerato r  cam e o ut  o f  the  C i ty ’ s  Ho us ing  Act io n  P lan,  
which  reco m m ends:  

"Establish a Housing Accelerator Fund to preserve affordable housing: Create a new fund to 
finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of affordable housing and to provide working capital 
for Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) projects. Local housing dollars will provide a one-time 
capital infusion, leveraging it to attract social impact capital and program-related investment 
dollars with the goal of achieving a leverage ratio of 10 to 1. Developers will benefit from longer 
terms and higher loan-to-value ratios than the market provides." 

Acce lerato r  was  inco rpo rated as  a  P ennsy lv ania  no npro f i t  co rpo rat io n  in  Octo ber  
2019  wi th  the  m iss io n  to  suppo rt  the  pro duct io n  and preserv at io n  o f  a f fo rdable  
ho us ing  and co m m unity  dev e lo pm ent  pro jects  in  the  C i ty  to  benef i t  lo w- inco m e 
peo ple  and/ o r  lo w- inco m e co m m unit ies .  

Acce lerato r  has  a  th i r teen (13)  m em ber  bo ard  that  inc ludes  f iv e  (5 )  publ i c -secto r  
po s i t io ns  and e ight  (8 )  pr iv ate -secto r  m em bers .  P HD C s taf f  w i l l  m anage  the  a f fa i rs  
o f  Acce lerato r  under  a  Mem o randum  o f  Understanding  ( "MOU")  unt i l  i t  i s  ready  to  
apply  to  U.S .  D epartm ent  o f  Treasury ,  CD FI  Fund,  to  beco m e a  Co m m unity  
D ev e lo pm ent  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n ( "CD FI" ) .   A m ajo r i ty  o f  Acce lerato r 's  bo ard  
m em bers  are  no n-go v ernm ent  em plo yees  in-part  to  ensure  e l ig ib i l i ty  fo r  CD FI  
cert i f i cat io n.  

Item II (c)

5



Author i ty  Loan :   The  m ater ia l  term s  o f  the  Autho r i ty  Lo an are  as  fo l lo ws:  
 
●  Lo an Am o unt :  E ight  Mi l l io n  D o l lars  ($8 ,000 ,000)  
●  Lo an Term  and Repaym ent :  2 40  Mo nths ,  w i th  the  o utstanding  ba lance  o f  

pr inc ipa l  due  at  m atur i ty  (un less  any  po rt io n  o f  the  Autho r i ty  Lo an i s  
fo rg iv en as  pro v ided be lo w) .  

●  Interest  Rate :   0 .0 0% 
●  Co l la tera l :   No ne  (Unsecured)  
●  Or ig inat io n  Fee:  N.A.  
●  Fo rg iv eness :  Upo n m atur i ty ,  any  am o unt  o f  the  Autho r i ty  Lo an that  

Acce lerato r  has  used as  a  guarantee  o r  f i r s t - lo ss  fund to  lev erage  pr iv ate  
inv estm ent ,  and which  Acce lerato r  subsequent ly  was  requi red to  repay  i t s  
th i rd-party  inv esto rs  fo r  exper ienced lo sses ,  m ay  be  fo rg iv en i f  autho r i zed 
by  the  Autho r i ty ' s  Bo ard  o f  D i recto rs .   Fo r  such fo rg iv eness  to  be  
co ns idered by  the  Autho r i ty  Bo ard,  Acce lerato r  m ust  pro v ide  Autho r i ty  wi th  
appro pr iate  do cum entat io n  to  ( i )  ev idence  payo ut  o r  the  need fo r  a  pay o ut  
o n such guarantees  and/ o r  lo an- lo ss  funds ,  and ( i i )  ev idence  the  fact  that  
Acce lerato r  do es  no t  hav e  o ther  av a i lab le  funds  to  repay  that  po rt io n  o f  
the  Autho r i ty  Lo an that  i s  used to  repay  i t s  th i rd -party  inv esto rs  fo r  
exper ienced lo sses .   

 
Other  T erms:  
●  Acce lerato r  sha l l  o n ly  inv est  in  pro jects  in  which  51% o f  ho us ing  uni t s  are  

a f fo rdable  to  ho useho lds  at  o r  be lo w 120% o f  Ph i lade lphia-Co unty  Area  
Median Inco m e ("AMI" )  w i th  funds  that  are  backed by  Autho r i ty  Lo an 
pro ceeds .  

●  Acce lerato r  sha l l  pro v ide  inv esto rs  wi th  guarantees  and lo an- lo ss  funds  that  
are  co ns is tent  wi th  industry  s tandards  fo r  CD FIs .  

●  Acce lerato r  sha l l  agree  to  carry  o ut  tho ro ugh due  d i l igence  and 
underwr i t ing  o n  a l l  t ransact io ns  that  inc lude  guarantees  and/ o r  lo an- lo ss  
funds  backed by  the  Autho r i t y  lo an.   

 
 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  i s  a t tached.  
 
 
P repared by :   Ryan Harm o n 
 
 

Item II (c)

6



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE A LOAN TO 
PHILADELPHIA ACCELERATOR FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF EIGHT MILLION 
DOLLARS  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Authority"), that 
the Authority is authorized to provide a loan in the amount of Eight Million Dollars ($8,000,000) 
(the "Authority Loan") to Philadelphia Accelerator Fund ("Accelerator"), a Pennsylvania 
domestic nonprofit corporation, for the purpose of leveraging private capital that will be used to 
invest in producing and/or preserving affordable housing projects in the City of Philadelphia (the 
"City") by establishing a loan-loss reserve, providing guarantees, and/or to satisfy liquidity 
covenants; 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority Loan funds will not be used by Accelerator for 
working capital uses as such uses may not be supported by our purpose under the Urban 
Redevelopment Law, 35 P.S. § 1701, et. seq. (the "URL"); 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, the Authority Loan is authorized under the following terms and 
conditions: 
 

1) Loan Agreement and Promissory Note with Accelerator, and other ancillary loan 
documents, providing for the Authority Loan to Accelerator in an amount not to exceed Eight 
Million Dollars ($8,000,000);  

 
2) Other material terms of the Authority Loan are as follows: 
 

● Loan Amount: Eight Million Dollars ($8,000,000) 
● Loan Term and Repayment: 240 Months, with the outstanding 

balance of principal due at maturity (unless any portion of the 
Authority Loan is forgiven as provided below). 

● Interest Rate:  0.00% 
● Collateral:  None (Unsecured) 
● Origination Fee: N.A. 
● Accelerator shall only invest in projects in which 51% of housing 

units are affordable to households at or below 120% of 
Philadelphia-County Area Median Income ("AMI") with funds that 
are backed by Authority Loan proceeds. 

● Accelerator shall provide investors with guarantees and loan-loss 
funds that are consistent with industry standards for CDFIs. 

● Accelerator shall agree to carry out thorough due diligence and 
underwriting on all transactions that include guarantees and/or 
loan-loss funds backed by the Authority loan. 

● Forgiveness: Upon maturity, any amount of the Authority Loan 
that Accelerator has used as a guarantee or first-loss fund to 

Item II (c)

7



  

leverage private investment, and which Accelerator subsequently 
was required to repay its third-party investors for experienced 
losses, may be forgiven if authorized by the Authority's Board of 
Directors.  For such forgiveness to be considered by the Authority 
Board, Accelerator must provide Authority with appropriate 
documentation to (i) evidence payout or the need for a payout on 
such guarantees and/or loan-loss funds, and (ii) evidence the fact 
that Accelerator does not have other available funds to repay that 
portion of the Authority Loan that is used to repay its third-party 
investors for experienced losses. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 

documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 

Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents.  
 
 

Item II (c)

8



 
 
 
 

BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020 
Art  Across  Neighborhoods In i t iat ive  
 

 
REQUEST :  The  Bo ard  i s  requested to  autho r ize  a  grant  in  the  am o unt  o f  One  Hundred 
F i f ty  Tho usand D o l lars  ($150 ,0 00 )  ( the  "Grant" )  as  part  o f  the  Art  Acro ss  Ne ighbo rho o ds  
In i t ia t iv e  ( "AAN In i t ia t iv e" ) .   The  Grant  wi l l  m atch  funding  pro v ided by  the  Knight  
Fo undat io n in  suppo rt  o f  the  AAN In i t ia t iv e .  
 
 
BACKGROUND :  In  D ecem ber ,  20 18 ,  a  pro po sa l  was  subm it ted by  the  Autho r i ty  to  the  
Knight  Fo undat io n seek ing  funding  to  dev e lo p a  p i lo t  pro gram  to  create  h igh-qua l i ty ,  
ar t i s t -dr iv en,  and co m m unity - info rm ed publ ic  ar t  in  C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  ( "C i ty" )  
ne ighbo rho o ds ,  which  pro po sa l  was  u l t im ate ly  accepted by  the  Knight  Fo undat io n.   D ue  
to  s ta f f ing  changes  bo th  interna l ly  and wi th  pro jec t  partners ,  im plem entat io n  o f  the  
pro gram  was  de layed.   Co ns ider ing  the  current  c r i s i s  re lated to  Co v id-19 ,  the  pro ject  i s  
be ing  re f ram ed as  a  three  (3 )  phase  in i t ia t iv e  inv est igat ing  the  sh i f t ing  ro le  o f  publ i c  ar t  
in  o ur  co m m unity :  
 

Phase I :  I deas  
One hundred (1 00 )  ar t i s t s  w i l l  each  rece iv e  One  Tho usand D o l lars  ($1 ,000 )  
in  suppo rt  o f  exem plary  pro po sa ls  inv est igat ing  what  engagem ent  m eans  in  
th i s  t im e when t rad i t io na l  interact io ns  are  no t  po ss ib le  
 
Phase I I :  Neig hborhood Workshops  
Twenty  (2 0)  o f  the  in i t ia l  o ne  hundred (100)  ar t i s t s  w i l l  be  inv i ted  to  
further  dev e lo p the i r  co ncepts   
 
Phase I I I :  Proj ec ts  at  the  Neighborhood Sc ale  
Three  (3 )  ar t i s t s  w i l l  be  se lected to  pro duce  co m m unity  based publ ic  wo rks  
o f  ar t  

 
The  funding  f ro m  the  Knight  Fo undat io n has  bee n rece iv ed by  the  Autho r i ty ' s  P ercent  
fo r  Art  P ro gram  and the  Knight  Fo undat io n rem ains  suppo rt iv e  o f  and engaged wi th  the  
AAN In i t ia t iv e .  
 
 
COMMENT S :   Thro ugh the  AAN In i t ia t iv e ,  the  Autho r i ty  ho pes  to  suppo rt  o ur  lo ca l  ar t i s t  
co m m unity  whi le  fo ster ing  leadersh ip ,  idea  shar ing ,  and inno v at io n  regard ing  the  
ev o lv ing  ro le  o f  publ i c  ar t  in  the  C i ty .  
 
 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  i s  a t tached.  
 
P repared by :   Ryan Harm o n 

Item II (d)

9



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF A GRANT NOT TO EXCEED 
$150,000 TO FUND THE ART ACROSS NEIGHBORHOODS INITIATIVE 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that authorization is 
hereby given to approve a grant in the amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($150,000) (the "Grant") to fund the Art Across Neighborhoods Initiative ("AAN Initiative"), 
which Grant will match funding provided by the Knight Foundation in support of the AAN 
Initiative, and for the Authority to enter into a corresponding grant agreement if necessary 
reflecting such grant.  
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents. 
 
 

Item II (d) 

10



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  May 13,  2020 
Smal l  Landlord  Loan Program 
Second L ine of  Credit  Loan to  Impact  Loan Fund, Inc.  

NAME OF BORROWER/ APPLICANT :  Im pact  Lo an Fund,  Inc .  (" Im pact" )  

Bac kground :   On August  30 ,  2019 ,  the P hi lade lphia  Redeve lo pm ent  Autho r i ty  
( "Autho r i ty" )  i ssued a  Request  fo r  P ro po sa ls  ( the  "RFP ") ,  seek ing  qua l i f ied  f inanc ia l  
ins t i tut io ns to  prov ide  lo ans (each,  an  "SLLP  Lo an" ,  and to gether,  the  "SLLP  Loans" )  
and technica l  ass i s tance  to  landlo rds  (each,  an  "SLLP  Landlo rd,"  and to gether ,  the 
"SLLP  Landlo rds" )  located with in  the C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  ( the  "C i ty")  that  o wn a 
to ta l  o f  ten (10)  o r  fewer uni t s  in  need o f  hea lth  and/o r  safety- re lated repa i rs  
(here in ,  the "Smal l  Landlo rd  Lo an P ro gram " o r  "SLLP ") .   Impact  was  the  o nly  
f inanc ia l  ins t i tut io n that  respo nded to  the RFP .  

P ursuant  to  Reso lut ion  No .  2019 -81 ,  ado pted o n No vem ber  13 ,  2019 ,  the  Autho r i ty  
Bo ard  approv ed a  no n-revo lv ing  l ine  o f  c redi t  fac i l i ty  in  the  m axim um pr inc ipa l  sum 
o f  Three  Hundred E ighty  Tho usand D o l lars  ($380 ,000)  ( "Or ig ina l  L ine  o f  Credi t")  to  
Im pact ,  the pro ceeds  o f  which  are  to  be used fo r  the purpo se o f  prov id ing  the SLLP 
Lo ans  and technica l  ass i s tance  to  SLLP  Landlo rds  in  the  C i ty .   A  m in im um  o f  to  30% 
o f  the Or ig ina l  L ine  o f  Credit  m ust  be used to  ass i s t  ho useholds  who  earn  at  o r  
be lo w f i f ty  percent  (50%)  o f  the Area  Median Incom e ("AMI" )  and the rem ain ing 
funds  m ust  be used to  ass i s t  ho useho lds  who  earn  at  o r  be low one  hundred percent  
(100%)  AMI .  Addi t iona l ly ,  the  rent  gu ide l ines  fo r  SLLP  s t ipu late  that  rents must 
remain affordable to tenants at  or below 60% of AMI and that rent increases for lease 
renewals cannot exceed 3% per year for the term of the Original  L ine of Credit .    

Nature  of  Request :   D ue  to  the  c i rcum stances  surro unding  the COVID -19 pandem ic  
and sev ere  eco nom ic im pact  i t  has  had on tenants  and landlo rds  in  the  C i ty ,  the 
Bo ard  i s  requested to  autho r ize  an  expans io n o f  the SLLP to  inc lude  an  addi t io na l  
no n-revo lv ing  l ine  o f  c redi t  fac i l i ty  in  the m ax im um  pr inc ipa l  sum  o f  S ix  Hundred 
Tho usand D o l lars  ($600 ,0 00)  ( "Seco nd L ine  o f  Credi t" )  to  Im pact ,  the  pro ceeds  o f  
which  are  to  be  used for the purpose of providing loans (each,  an  "SLLP Em ergency 
Lo an" ,  and to gether ,  the  "SLLP  Em ergency  Loans" )  to landlords located in the City  
that ( i )  own a total  of f i fteen (15) or  fewer units,  and ( i i )  are in need of funds to help 
keep their units and bui ldings in operation during the COVID-19 pandemic (each,  an  
"SLLP  Burdened Landlo rd,"  and to gether,  the  "SLLP  Burdened Landlo rds" ) .   The  rent  
gu ide l ines  fo r  SLLP  Em ergency  Lo ans  wi l l  s t ipu late  that  rents must remain affordable 
to tenants at  or below 60% of Area Median Income ("AMI") and that rent increases for  
lease renewals cannot exceed 3% per year for the term of the Second Line of  Credit.   

Item II (e)

11



  

The  Seco nd L ine  o f  Credi t  w i l l  be  i ssued to  Im pact  to  suppo rt  SLLP  and wi l l  requi re  
Im pact  to  prov ide  the fo l lo wing  serv ices :  
 
·  D eterm ine  e l ig ib i l i ty  fo r  SLLP Em ergency  Lo ans  to  SLLP  Burdened Landlo rds  

who :  
o  Own no  m o re  than f i f teen (15)  un i t s  o f  renta l  ho us ing  in  the i r  

po rt fo l io s .  
o  Wil l  use  SLLP  Em ergency  Lo an funds  to  suppo rt  o perat ing  needs  o n 

pro pert ies  located in  the  C i ty .  
o  Rent  a l l  un i t s  a f fo rdable  to  tenants  at  o r  be lo w s ix ty  percent  (60%)  of  

AMI .  
o  Hav e a l l  necessary  c learances :  renta l  l i cense ,  lease in  p lace ,  rea l  es tate  

taxes  pa id  thro ugh 2019 .  
 

·  Underwr i te,  o r ig inate  and serv ice  SLLP  Em ergency Lo ans  that  re f lect  the 
fo l lowing  term s:  

o  SLLP Emergency Loans may not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars  ($10,000) 
per SLLP Burdened Landlord.  

o  SLLP Emergency Loans do not require repayment for the f irst  s ix  (6)  
months of their term. 

o  The term of each SLLP Emergency Loan may not exceed forty-eight (48)  
months.  

o  SLLP Emergency Loans shal l  general ly  be ful ly  amortiz ing through 
maturity,  unless Impact deems that the SLLP Burdened Landlord’s 
emergency economic situat ion requires a lower monthly payment with a  
bal loon payment due at maturity .  

o  SLLP Emergency Loan interest rates may not exceed four percent (4%) 
f ixed rate unless approved, in writ ing,  by the Authority.  

o  SLLP Emergency Loan closing fees may not exceed One Hundred Fifty  
Dollars ($150).  

o  No prepayment penalty for early payments.  
o  For every SLLP Emergency Loan,  Impact must obtain a personal guaranty 

from the pr inc ipal  of the SLLP Burdened Landlord ( if  an entity).  
 
Sec ond L ine  of  Credi t :   The  m ater ia l  term s  o f  the  Seco nd L ine  o f  Credi t  are  as  
fo l lows:  
 
· Amount :  Six  Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000) 
· Interest Rate:  0% 
· Term :  The earl ier of ( i )  f ive (5)  years,  or ( i i )  the ful l  prepayment or maturity of 

the last  outstanding SLLP Emergency Loan issued by Impact under the SLLP,  
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with Second Line of Credit  loan 
documents (herein,  the "Maturity Date")  

· Repayment: I f  within one (1)  year  of the effective date of  the Second Line of  
Credit  loan documents  ("SLLP Emergency Loan Issuance Deadline") there are any 
proceeds of  the Second L ine of  Credit  that  have not been used to issue SLLP 
Emergency Loans,  such proceeds shall  be due and payable to the Authority  
within ninety (90) days fol lowing the SLLP Emergency Loan Issuance Deadline.  

Item II (e)

12



Upon maturity  or prepayment of any SLLP Emergency Loan, the entire  pr inc ipal  
amount of such SLLP Emergency Loan must be paid to the Authority  within ninety 
(90) days of such maturity or prepayment to pay down the Second L ine of Credit ,  
less an administrat ive fee of three percent (3%) of such SLLP Emergency Loan 
for issuing and servic ing the SLLP Emergency Loan.  Fol lowing the Maturity Date,  
the Second Line of Credit  shal l  be immediately due and payable to the Authority 
less a three percent  (3%) administrat ive fee of any outstanding SLLP Emergency 
Loan. In no event shal l  the administrative fee for issuing and servicing al l  SLLP 
Emergency Loans be less than Fi fteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000).   Impact  wil l  
make a reasonable effort  to col lect any SLLP Emergency Loans that are in  
default,  but any legal  action, judgments,  or recording costs wi l l  be deducted 
from the pr inc ipal  sum returned to the Authority.  

· Accrued Interest on SLLP Emergency Loans: Impact is  entit led to retain a l l  
interest accrued on any SLLP Emergency Loans originated by Impact.  

· Early Termination of the Second Line of Credit:  The Second Line of Credit  may 
be terminated at any t ime upon thirty (30) days'  notice,  with the consent of the 
Authority and Impact,  so long as no SLLP Emergency Loans are outstanding and 
al l  principal  from the Second L ine of  Credit  has been repaid. Further,  i f  no SLLP 
Emergency Loans are  originated pr ior to the SLLP Emergency Loan Issuance 
Deadline,  the Authority may terminate the Second Line of Credit  and Impact 
must repay al l  principal  under the Second Line of Credit  within thirty (30) 
business days.  

 
 
 
 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  is  a t tached.  
 
 
P repared by :   A l i  Moo ney 
Rev iewed by :  Ryan Harm o n  
 
 

Item II (e)

13



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE A NON-
REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT LOAN TO IMPACT LOAN FUND, INC. IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $600,000 FOR THE SMALL LANDLORD LOAN 
PROGRAM  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 30, 2019, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
("Authority") issued a Request for Proposals (the "RFP"), seeking qualified financial institutions 
to provide loans (each, an "SLLP Loan", and together, the "SLLP Loans") and technical 
assistance to landlords (each, an "SLLP Landlord," and together, the "SLLP Landlords") located 
within the City of Philadelphia (the "City") that own a total of ten (10) or fewer units in need of 
health and/or safety-related repairs (herein, the "Small Landlord Loan Program" or "SLLP").   
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-81, adopted on November 13, 2019, the 
Authority Board approved a non-revolving line of credit facility in the maximum principal sum 
of Three Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($380,000) ("Original Line of Credit") to Impact 
Loan Fund, Inc. ("Impact"), the proceeds of which are to be used for the purpose of providing the 
SLLP Loans and technical assistance to SLLP Landlords in the City who have units in need of 
health and/or safety-related repairs.   
 
 WHEREAS, due to the circumstances surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic and severe 
economic impact it has had on tenants and landlords in the City, the Board is requested to 
authorize an expansion of the SLLP to include an additional non-revolving line of credit facility 
in the maximum principal sum of Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000) ("Second Line of 
Credit") to Impact, the proceeds of which are to be used for the purpose of providing loans (each, 
an "SLLP Emergency Loan", and together, the "SLLP Emergency Loans") to landlords located in 
the City that (i) own a total of fifteen (15) or fewer units, and (ii) are in need of funds to help 
keep their units and buildings in operation during the COVID-19 pandemic (each, an "SLLP 
Burdened Landlord," and together, the "SLLP Burdened Landlords") as provided in the attached 
Fact Sheet. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority ("Authority"), that the Authority is authorized to expand the SLLP to provide the 
Second Line of Credit to be to be used for the purpose of providing SLLP Emergency Loans to 
SLLP Burdened Landlords. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the Second Line of Credit is authorized under the following 
terms and conditions: 
 

1) Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement and Line of Credit Note, and 
other ancillary loan documents, between the Authority and Impact providing for the Second Line 
of Credit to Impact;  

 
 

Item II (e)

14



  

 
2) Other material terms of the Second Line of Credit are as follows: 
 

• Amount: Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000) 
• Interest Rate: 0% 
• Term: The earlier of (i) five (5) years, or (ii) the full prepayment or 

maturity of the last outstanding SLLP Emergency Loan issued by Impact 
under the SLLP, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with Second 
Line of Credit loan documents (herein, the "Maturity Date") 

• Repayment: If within one (1) year of the effective date of the Second Line 
of Credit loan documents ("SLLP Emergency Loan Issuance Deadline") 
there are any proceeds of the Second Line of Credit that have not been 
used to issue SLLP Emergency Loans, such proceeds shall be due and 
payable to the Authority within ninety (90) days following the SLLP 
Emergency Loan Issuance Deadline. Upon maturity or prepayment of any 
SLLP Emergency Loan, the entire principal amount of such SLLP 
Emergency Loan must be paid to the Authority within ninety (90) days of 
such maturity or prepayment to pay down the Second Line of Credit, less 
an administrative fee of three percent (3%) of such SLLP Emergency Loan 
for issuing and servicing the SLLP Emergency Loan. Following the 
Maturity Date, the Second Line of Credit shall be immediately due and 
payable to the Authority less a three percent (3%) administrative fee of any 
outstanding SLLP Emergency Loan. In no event shall the administrative 
fee for issuing and servicing all SLLP Emergency Loans be less than 
Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000).  Impact will make a reasonable effort 
to collect any SLLP Emergency Loans that are in default, but any legal 
action, judgments, or recording costs will be deducted from the principal 
sum returned to the Authority. 

• Accrued Interest on SLLP Emergency Loans: Impact is entitled to 
retain all interest accrued on any SLLP Emergency Loans originated by 
Impact. 

• Early Termination of the Second Line of Credit: The Second Line of 
Credit may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days' notice, with 
the consent of the Authority and Impact, so long as no SLLP Emergency 
Loans are outstanding and all principal from the Second Line of Credit has 
been repaid. Further, if no SLLP Emergency Loans are originated prior to 
the SLLP Emergency Loan Issuance Deadline, the Authority may 
terminate the Second Line of Credit and Impact must repay all principal 
under the Second Line of Credit within thirty (30) business days. 

 
3) The Second Line of Credit will be issued to Impact to support the SLLP and will 

require Impact to provide the following services: 
 

• Determine eligibility for SLLP Emergency Loans to SLLP Burdened Landlords 
who: 

Item II (e)

15



 
o Own no more than fifteen (15) units of rental housing in their 

portfolios. 
o Will use SLLP Emergency Loan funds to support operating needs on 

properties located in the City. 
o Rent all units affordable to tenants at or below sixty percent (60%) of 

AMI. 
o Have all necessary clearances: rental license, lease in place, real estate 

taxes paid through 2019. 
 

• Underwrite, originate and service SLLP Emergency Loans that reflect the 
following terms: 
 

o SLLP Emergency Loans may not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars 
($10,000) per SLLP Burdened Landlord.  

o SLLP Emergency Loans do not require repayment for the first six (6) 
months of their term. 

o The term of each SLLP Emergency Loan may not exceed forty-eight 
(48) months. 

o SLLP Emergency Loans shall generally be fully amortizing through 
maturity, unless Impact deems that the SLLP Burdened Landlord’s 
emergency economic situation requires a lower monthly payment with 
a balloon payment due at maturity. 

o SLLP Emergency Loan interest rates may not exceed four percent (4%) 
fixed rate unless approved, in writing, by the Authority. 

o SLLP Emergency Loan closing fees may not exceed One Hundred 
Fifty Dollars ($150). 

o No prepayment penalty for early payments. 
o For every SLLP Emergency Loan, Impact must obtain a personal 

guaranty from the principal of the SLLP Burdened Landlord (if an 
entity). 

 
4) Closing on the Second Line of Credit will be contingent on receiving all necessary 

Authority approvals from various departments. 
 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 

documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 

Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents.  
 
 

Item II (e)

16



 
 
 

 
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  May 13,  2020 
Approval  of  Shal low Rent P i lot  Program Payments 
 

 
 
Nature  of  Transac t ion:   The  Bo ard  i s  requested to  autho r ize  the  d is t r ibut io n  o f  
funds  fo r  the Sha l lo w Rent  P i lo t  P ro gram ("P ro gram")  in  an  amo unt  no t  to  exceed 
Two  Mi l l io n  Do l lars  ($ 2 ,000 ,000)  ( the  "Autho r i ty  Funds" )  to  be used for  the purpose 
of providing shal low rent subsidies to cost-burdened tenants.   
 
 
Bac kground :   The Program is des igned to provide rental  assistance on behalf  of el ig ible  
tenants.  El igible tenants are households who, after al l  applicable federal,  state,  and 
local  affordable housing subsidies,  are paying more than 30% of their  gross  income on 
rent (each, a "Cost Burdened Tenant",  and col lectively,  the "Cost Burdened Tenants").  
PHDC wil l  provide Program vouchers for Cost Burdened Tenants in an amount not to 
exceed the difference between the applicable  Cost Burdened Tenant's  rental  
contribution and 30% of the applicable Cost Burdened Tenants'  gross income, up to  
Five Hundred Dollars ($500) maximum per unit ,  per month ( i .e.  Six  Thousand Dollars  
($6,000) per unit  annually).  Program vouchers are not portable,  meaning that they wil l  
only be issued on behalf  of Cost Burdened Tenants who have an active,  enforceable  
lease agreement. PHDC wil l  wire Program voucher payments  monthly and shal l  
discont inue payments  if  the Cost Burdened Tenant no longer occupies the unit  or 
qualif ies as a Cost Burdened Tenant.   
 
On January  8 ,  2020,  the P hi lade lphia  Redeve lo pm ent Author i ty  ( "Autho r ity") ,  
thro ugh P HD C,  i s sued a  Request  fo r  P ropo sa ls  ( "RFP ")  fo r  the  P ro gram and the 
fo l lowing  n ine  (9 )  rec ip ients  were  se lected (each,  a  "Rec ip ient ,"  and to gether ,  the 
"Rec ip ients" ) :  
 

·  Asociac ion Puertorr iquenos  en Marc ha   
·  Community  Ventures   
·  HACE CDC  
·  T he Mic haels  Organizat ion   
·  New  Kensing ton CDC  
·  Phi ladelphia  Chinatow n Dev elopment  Corporat ion  
·  People 's  Emerg ency  Center   
·  Veteran's  Mult i -Serv ic e  Center   
·  Women's  Community  Revi ta l i z at ion Program  

 
 
 
 

Item II (f) 

17



  

Author i ty  Funds :  
The  P ro gram  wi l l  be  funded with  a  m ix  o f  Ho us ing  Trust  Funds ,  CD BG-CV and HOME 
Funds .  The  Autho r i ty  Funds  wi l l  be  d is t r ibuted to  the  Rec ip ients  as  fo l lo ws:  
 

·  Asociac ion Puertorr iquenos  en Marc ha  w i l l  rece iv e One Hundred Ninety -Two 
Tho usand Sev en Hundred Ninety -Two  Do l lars  and Ninety  Cents  ($192 ,792 .90) .  

·  Community  Ventures  w i l l  rece ive  One Hundred Ninety -Sev en Thousand Three 
Hundred E lev en Do l lars  and Thi r ty -Three Cents  ($197 ,311 .33) .  

·  HACE CDC wi l l  rece iv e  One  Hundred Fo rty -E ight  Tho usand E ight  Hundred  
Sev enty-Fo ur  Do l lars  and Fo rty -One  Cents  ($148 ,874 .41) .  

·  T he Mic haels  Org aniz at ion  w i l l  rece iv e F iv e Hundred Three Tho usand E ight  
Hundred Twenty -Three  Do l lars  and E lev en Cents  ($503,823 .11) .  

·  New  Kensing ton CDC wi l l  rece iv e  One  Hundred S ix ty -F iv e  Thousand E ight  
Hundred Twelv e  Do l lars  and F iv e Cents  ($165 ,812 .05 ) .  

·  Phi ladelphia  Chinatow n Dev elopment  Corporat ion wi l l  rece iv e Twenty -Fo ur 
Tho usand S ix  Hundred S ix ty -Fo ur  Do l lars  and E ighty  Cents  ($24 ,664 .80) .  

·  People 's  Emerg ency Center  wi l l  rece iv e F i f ty -Fo ur Tho usand Sev en Hundred 
Ninety  D o l lars  and E ighty  Cents  ($54 ,790 .80) .  

·  Veteran's  Mult i -Serv ic e  Center  wi l l  receiv e  E ighty -Sev en Tho usand Two 
Hundred Twelv e  Do l lars  and S ix ty -Fo ur  Cents  ($87 ,212 .64) .  

·  Women's  Community  Rev i ta l iz at ion Program wi l l  rece iv e Three  Hundred 
Fo rty -One  Tho usand S ix  Hundred Thi r ty-Sev en D o l lars  and Ninety  Cents  
($341 ,63 7 .90 ) .  

 
 
 
 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  is  a t tached.  
 
 
P repared by :   A l i  Moo ney 
Rev iewed by :  Ryan Harm o n  
 
 

Item II (f) 

18



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY TO DISTRIBUTE FUNDS TO VARIOUS RECIPIENTS IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000 FOR THE SHALLOW RENT PILOT PROGRAM 
 
 WHEREAS, the Shallow Rent Pilot Program (the "Program") is designed to provide 
rental assistance on behalf of eligible tenants who, after all applicable federal, state, and local 
affordable housing subsidies, are paying more than 30% of their gross income on rent (each, a 
"Cost Burdened Tenant", and collectively, the "Cost Burdened Tenants"). 
 
 WHEREAS, Program vouchers will be issued for Cost Burdened Tenants in an amount 
not to exceed the difference between the applicable Cost Burdened Tenant's rental contribution 
and 30% of the applicable Cost Burdened Tenants' gross income, up to Five Hundred Dollars 
($500) maximum per unit, per month (i.e. Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000) per unit annually). 
 

WHEREAS, Program vouchers will only be issued on behalf of Cost Burdened Tenants 
who have an active, enforceable lease agreement, will be wired monthly and shall be 
discontinued if the Cost Burdened Tenant no longer occupies the unit or qualifies as a Cost 
Burdened Tenant. 
 

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2020, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
("Authority"), through PHDC, issued a Request for Proposals (the "RFP") for the Program and 
the following nine (9) recipients were selected by Authority staff (each, a "Recipient," and 
together, the "Recipients"): 
 

• Asociacion Puertorriquenos en Marcha  
• Community Ventures  
• HACE CDC  
• The Michaels Organization  
• New Kensington CDC  
• Philadelphia Chinatown Development Corporation  
• People's Emergency Center  
• Veteran's Multi-Service Center  
• Women's Community Revitalization Program 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority ("Authority"), that the Authority is authorized to provide funds in an amount not to 
exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for the purpose of providing Program subsidies using a 
mix of Housing Trust Funds, CDBG-CV and HOME Funds ("Program Funds").  
 

FURTHER RESOLVING, the Authority is authorized to make payments of Program 
Funds to the above-identified Recipients as follows: 

 
• Asociacion Puertorriquenos en Marcha will receive One Hundred Ninety-Two 

Item II (f) 

19



Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-Two Dollars and Ninety Cents ($192,792.90). 
• Community Ventures will receive One Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand Three

Hundred Eleven Dollars and Thirty-Three Cents ($197,311.33).
• HACE CDC will receive One Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred

Seventy-Four Dollars and Forty-One Cents ($148,874.41).
• The Michaels Organization will receive Five Hundred Three Thousand Eight

Hundred Twenty-Three Dollars and Eleven Cents ($503,823.11).
• New Kensington CDC will receive One Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand Eight

Hundred Twelve Dollars and Five Cents ($165,812.05).
• Philadelphia Chinatown Development Corporation will receive Twenty-Four

Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Four Dollars and Eighty Cents ($24,664.80).
• People's Emergency Center will receive Fifty-Four Thousand Seven Hundred

Ninety Dollars and Eighty Cents ($54,790.80).
• Veteran's Multi-Service Center will receive Eighty Seven Thousand Two

Hundred Twelve Dollars and Sixty-Four Cents ($87,212.64).
• Women's Community Revitalization Program will receive Three Hundred

Forty-One Thousand Six Hundred Thirty-Seven Dollars and Ninety Cents
($341,637.90).

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its 
purposes and intents.  

Item II (f) 

20



 
 
 

 
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020 
Release of  Certa in  Covenants  and Restr ict ions   
1509 N.  17th  Street  
 

 
NAME OF DEVELOPER/ APPLI CANT :  P hi lade lphia  Ho us ing  D ev e lo pm ent  Co rpo rat io n  
( "Redev e lo per" )  
 
NAT URE OF T RANSACT I ON :   The  Bo ard  i s  asked to  autho r ize  the  i ssuance  o f  a  re lease  o f  
certa in  co v enants  and rest r i c t io ns  re lat iv e  to  the  pro perty  lo cated at  1509  N.  17th  
St reet  ( the  "P ro perty" ) .    
 
BACKGROUND:  P ursuant  to  a  D eed dated Ju ly  20 ,  1988  ( "D eed") ,  the  Redev e lo pm ent  
Autho r i ty  co nv eyed s ix teen (16)  pro pert ies  to  the  Redev e lo per .   Th is  pro perty  was  nev er  
dev e lo ped by  the  dev e lo per  and was  subsequent ly  co nv eyed to  Jo hn Gi l l iam  o n Apr i l  2 ,  
2007.   Mr .  G i l l iam  nev er  dev e lo ped the  pro perty  e i ther  and then co nveyed the  pro perty  
to  Wi l l ingto n Ho ld ings  LLC  o n March 17 ,  2010 .   Based o n im ages  o f  the  pro perty  i t  sho ws  
that  in  2010  th is  pro perty  was  v acant  land up unt i l  20 12  when i t  was  dev e lo ped into  a  
m ult i - fam i ly  res ident ia l  dwel l ing  by  Wi l l ingto n Ho ld ings  LLC .  P HD C do es  no t  hav e  any  
reco rds  to  co nf i rm  the  dev e lo pm ent  o bl igat io n  that  was  p laced o n Mr.  G i l l iam .    
 
Owner  has  requested a  re lease  o f  certa in  co v enants  and rest r i c t io ns  in  the  deed re lat ing  
to  the  rehabi l i tat io n,  o ccupancy  and co nv eyance  o f  the  P ro perty .   The  perm anent  
rest r i c t io ns  re lat ing  to  no n-d iscr im inat io n  and dev o t ing  the  land fo r  res ident ia l  and 
re lated uses  wi l l  no t  be  rem o v ed.  
 
Because  th is  parce l  has  been dev e lo ped into  res ident ia l  use ,  the  Redev e lo pm ent  
Autho r i ty  reco m m ends  the  i ssuance  o f  a  re lease  o f  certa in  co v enants  and rest r i c t io ns .  
 
 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  and suppo rt ing  info rm at io n are  at tached (pho to graph) .   
 
 
P repared by :   Br ian  Ro m ano  
Rev iewed by :  Ange l  Ro dr iguez  

Item III (a)

21



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF CERTAIN COVENANTS AND 
RESTRICTIONS FOR 1509 N. 17TH STREET 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority that, in accordance 
with the attached Fact Sheet, certain restrictions and covenants contained in the Deed between the 
Authority and Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation dated July 20, 1988, may be 
released as they pertain to the property located at 1509 N. 17th Street. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of a Release and 
all other documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Executive Director and General Counsel. 
 

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes 
and intents. 

Item III (a)

22



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (a)

23



Item III (a)

24



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meet ing of  May 13,  2020 
Lease Agreement  
1220-30 Keni lworth  Street  
 

 
 
NAME OF DEVELOPER/APPLICANT:   Neighborhood Gardens Trust  ("NGT")  
 

Nature of  Transact ion:   The Board  is  asked to  author ize  a  resolut ion  author iz ing a  
f ive  (5)  year  lease to  NGT for  1220-30 Keni lworth  Street  ( the "Property") .  
 
Th is  garden located on the Property,  known as  the Hawthorne Community  garden,  
was f i rst  started over  ten  (10)  years  ago by the community  af ter  construct ion  
debr is  was lef t  over  f rom a developer  f rom a nearby development .   Over  the past  
ten  (10)  years ,  gardeners  have put  in  a  s ign i f icant  ef fort  to  mainta in ing and 
beaut i fy ing the Property.   The Property  was conveyed back to  the Author i ty  last  
year .   Fo l lowing execut ion of  a  lease,  NGT wi l l  cont inue to  use  th is  Property  as  a  
garden for  the community  and to  supply  fami l ies  with  food through a  partner  
foodbank.  
 

  
Legal  Ent i ty/Other  Partners  ( i f  appl icable) :   Neighborhood Gardens Trust  
                Jenni fer  Greenberg -  Pres ident  
 
Mail ing Address:  100 N.  20 t h  Street ,  5 t h  F loor ,  Ph i ladelphia ,  PA 19103 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION:  1220-30 Keni lworth  Street  
 
Descr ipt ion:   10,870 sq.  f t . ,  vacant  lot  Zoning:  RM-1   Use:  Garden 
 
Disposit ion Value:  One Dol lar  ($1.00)  per  year  dur ing the term  
 
COMMENTS OR OTHER CONDITIONS:   
 
The Property  has  operated as  an  establ ished garden for  ten  (10)  years ,  therefore  
meet ing and exceeding the cont inuous operat ion  standard  of  f ive  (5)  or  more years  in  
addit ion  to  establ ish ing a  sat is factory record  involv ing i t s  ex ist ing neighborhood.  
 
NGT is  compl iant  with  the Ci ty  of  Ph i ladelphia  Revenue Department  and has  no 
outstanding tax obl igat ions,  conf l icts  of  interest ,  or  unresolved v io lat ion  of  C i ty  L&I  
codes.  
 
 

Item III (b)

25



  
 

 
 
 
 
Per  Chapter  17-1600 of  the Phi ladelphia  Code,  an  Economic Opportunity  P lan  is  
required for  th is  project  but  there  wi l l  be  no part ic ipat ion  or  monitor ing 
requirements  as  the property  has  been and wi l l  cont inue to  be operated as  a  garden.   
 
 
 
Proposed Resolut ion  and support ing project  informat ion are  attached (s i te  map and 
photograph).   
 
 
Prepared by:   Br ian  Romano 
Reviewed by:  Angel  Rodr iguez  

Item III (b)

26



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FIVE (5) YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
NEIGHBORHOOD GARDENS TRUST FOR 1220-30 KENILWORTH STREET 
LOCATED IN THE SOUTH CENTRAL REDEVELOPMENT AREA, SOUTH CENTRAL 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that the Authority is 
hereby authorized to enter into a  five (5) year Lease Agreement with Neighborhood Gardens Trust 
("NGT") for the property located at 1220-30 Kenilworth Street (the "Property"), located in the 
South Central Redevelopment Area, South Central Urban Renewal Area and approval is hereby 
given to NGT and the proposed method of disposition as most appropriate and prudent under the 
law and circumstances; approving a rent rate during the term of the Lease Agreement of One Dollar 
($1.00) per year; determining that NGT possesses the qualifications and financial resources 
necessary to lease the Property; further authorizing the execution and delivery of the Lease 
Agreement for the Property and the preparation of all other documentation necessary or desirable in 
order to carry out the foregoing, and to obtain the appropriate councilmanic action.  
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General 
Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes 
and intents.  

Item III (b)

27



  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Item III (b)

28



Item III (b)

29



Item III (b)

30



   
  

 
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  May 13,  2020 
Select ion  of  Redeveloper 
2451-53 Frankford Avenue 

 
NAME OF DEVELOPER/ APPLICANT :  BMK P ro pert ies ,  LLC  ( "BMK")  
 

Nature  of  T ransact ion:  Se lect io n  o f  BMK as  redeve lo per  pro pos ing  to  deve lo p 2451 -53 
Frankfo rd  Avenue  ( the  "P ro perty" )  as  a  comm erc ia l  gro und f lo or  wi th  s ix  (6)  un i t s  to  
be  so ld  as  wo rkfo rce ho us ing  uni t s  at  120% Area  Median Income (the "P ro ject") .  Th is  
P ro ject  w i l l  a l so  have  a  dec larat io n o f  rest r i c t iv e  co v enants  at tached to  ensure that  
the  s ix  (6 )  un i t s  are  used fo r  wo rkfo rce hous ing.  

  
 Legal  Ent i ty /Other  Partners  ( i f  appl i c able) :    Lawrence  McKnight ,  Mem ber 
        Mo ham ed Rushdy ,  Mem ber 
                      
 Mai l ing  Address :   3020  R ichmo nd St reet ,  P h i lade lphia ,  P A  19134 
 
PROPERT Y INFORMATI ON:  2 451-53 Frankfo rd  Av enue  ( the  "P ro perty" )  
 

Descr ipt ion:   3 ,728  SF ,  v acant  lot     Zoning :  CMX-2     Use:   Mixed-use 
 
 D i sposi t ion Pr ic e:   Two  Hundred Tho usand D o l lars  ($200 ,000 .00)  
 

The  P ro perty  was posted as  a  com pet i t ive  b id .   BMK's  pro po sa l  was  o ne o f  three  (3)  
qua l i f ied  b ids  subm it ted fo r  the  Pro perty .   Th is  pro po sa l  sco red the  h ighest  o f  the  three 
(3 )  pro po sa ls  and was reco mmended by  the sco r ing  comm it tee  for  se lect io n.   

 
F I NANCING: 
 

BMK has  prov ided do cumentat io n  o f  av a i lab le  funds  o r  reasonable  ab i l i ty  to  o btain  
necessary  funds  in  an amo unt  no  less  than to ta l  P ro ject  co sts .  
 

COMMENT S OR OT HER CONDI TI ONS:  
 

BMK i s  com pl iant  wi th  the  C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  Revenue  Department  and has  no 
o utstanding  tax  o bl igat io ns ,  co nf l i ct s  o f  interest ,  o r  unreso lved v io lat io n o f  C i ty  L&I  
co des .  P er  Chapter  17 -1600  o f  the  P hi lade lphia  Co de  the  Eco no m ic  Oppo rtuni ty  P lan  
ranges  have  been set  at  MBE – 15%,  WBE –20%.  
 
 

P ro po sed Reso lut io n and suppo rt ing P ro ject  in fo rm at io n are  at tached ( inc luding  s i te  m ap 
and pho to graph) .  
 
P repared by :   Br ian  Rom ano 
Rev iewed by :  Ange l  Ro dr iguez 

 

Item III (c)

31



 
     

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION SELECTING BMK PROPERTIES, LLC AS REDEVELOPER OF 2451-53 
FRANKFORD AVENUE LOCATED IN THE NEW KENSINGTON-FISHTOWN 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA, NEW KENSINGTON-FISHTOWN URBAN RENEWAL 
AREA 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that BMK Properties, 
LLC is hereby selected as Redeveloper of 2451-53 Frankford Avenue, located in the New 
Kensington-Fishtown Redevelopment Area, New Kensington-Fishtown Urban Renewal Area, and 
approval is hereby given to the Redevelopment Contract and the proposed method of disposition as 
most appropriate and prudent under the law and circumstances; approving a disposition price of Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00); determining that the Redeveloper possesses the 
qualifications and financial resources necessary to acquire and develop the property in accordance 
with the Redeveloper's approved plans; further authorizing the execution, delivery and recording of 
the Redevelopment Contract and a Deed for the property and the preparation of all other 
documentation necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing, and to obtain the appropriate 
councilmanic action.  
  
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Executive Director, with the advice of General Counsel, 
may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  

 
 

Item III (c)

32



  2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

33



  4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

34



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

35



  6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

36



   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

37



  8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

38



   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

39



  10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

40



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

41



   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item III (c)

42



2451-53 Frankford Avenue 

Item III (c)

43


	PRA Board Agenda of 5-13-2020
	05-13-2020 Board Agenda
	PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	PHILADELPHIA, PA  19107
	PHILADELPHIA, PA  19107
	BOARD MEETING
	BOARD MEETING
	WEDNESDAY, MAY 13, 2020
	WEDNESDAY, MAY 13, 2020
	A G E N D A
	A G E N D A




	03-11-2020 Minutes
	03-11-2020 Minutes
	03-11-2020 Minutes
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	ROLL CALL
	ROLL CALL

	ADJOURNMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	03-11-2020 Board Fact Sheets
	03-11-2020 Board Fact Sheets
	Board Items
	Item IIa (Carpenter Green Park 914-928 S. 17th Street) - Copy
	Item IIa_FS (Carpetner Green Park - 914-928 So. 17th Street)

	Item IIb (Conveyance of City Properties to Land Bank)
	Item IIb_FS (Land Bank - City Property Transfers - March 2020)

	Item IIc (Release of Redevelopment Agreement 2700 Sears Street)
	Item IIc_FS (2700 Sears Street Release)

	Item IV (Conveyance of Propety - 2517 N. 9th Street)
	Item IV_FS (Department of Public Property Transfers)



	03-11-2020 PRA Add on Agenda
	Item V (Hancock Playground)
	Item V_FS (Hancock Playground)




	Board Items
	Item IIa (Philadelphia Zoo Penrose)
	Item IIa_FS (Philadelphia Zoo Pennrose Building - 3400 Girard Avenue)
	Item IIa_Res  (Philadelphia Zoo Pennrose Building - 3400 Girard Avenue)
	RESOLUTION NO.
	RESOLUTION NO.


	Item IIb (400 North Broad Street - Corporation Facilities of New Jersey, Inc.)
	Item IIb_FS  (400 No. Broad Street including 1501 Callowhill Street - Corporate Facilities of NJ, Inc.)
	Item IIb_Res (400 No. Broad Street including 1501 Callowhill Street - Corporate Facilities of NJ, Inc.)
	RESOLUTION NO.
	RESOLUTION NO.


	Item IIc (Philadelphia Accelerator Fund)
	Item IIc_FS (PRA Loan to PAF) (2020) (Final 5-4-2020)
	Item IIc_Res (PRA Loan to PAF) (2020) (Final 5-4-2020)

	Item IId (Art Across Neighborhood Inititative)
	Item IId_FS (Art Across Neighborhoods Initiative Grant) (REVISED 5-8-2020)
	Item IId (Art Across Neighborhood Inititative)
	Item IId_Res (Art Across Neighborhoods Initiative Grant)


	Item IIe (Small Landlord Loan Program - Second Line of Creidt
	Item IIe_FS (SLLP Second Line of Credit Loan) (REVISED 5-8-2020)
	Item IIe_Res (SLLP Second Line of Credit Loan) (REVISED 5-8-2020)

	Item IIf (Shallow Rent Pilot Program Recipients & Payments)
	Item IIf_FS (Shallow Rent Pilot Program Payments)
	Item IIf_Res (Shallow Rent Pilot Program Payments)

	Item IIIa (1509 N. 17th Street - Release of Covenants & Releases)
	Item IIIa_FS (1509 N. 17th Street)
	Item IIIa_Res (1509 N. 17th Street)
	III a (Attachments)

	Item IIIb (1220-30 Kenilworth Street - Lease Agreements)
	Item IIIb (1220-30 Kenilworth Street - Lease Agreements)
	Item IIIb_FS (Neighborhood Garden Trust - 1220-30 Kenilworth Street)
	Item IIIb_Res (Neighborhood Garden Trust - 1220-30 Kenilworth Street)
	RESOLUTION NO.
	RESOLUTION NO.


	IIIb (attachments)

	Item IIIc (BMK Properties )
	Item IIIc_FS (BMK Properties - 2451-53 Frankford Avenue) (REVISED 5-8-2020)
	Item IIIc (BMK Properties )
	Item IIIc_Res BMK Properties - 2451-53 Frankford Avenue)
	IIIc (Attachments)






